

Lionbridge for Relativity

Installation and Configuration Guide

Version 2.0.0 December 12, 2019

Copyright

© Copyright 2019 Lionbridge Technologies, Inc. All rights reserved.

Lionbridge and the Lionbridge logotype are registered trademarks or trademarks of Lionbridge Technologies, Inc. in the United States and other countries. All other trademarks used herein are the property of their respective owners. The opinions of third-party contributors remain theirs alone and do not necessarily represent the views of Lionbridge Technologies.

Contents

1 Welcome to Lionbridge for Relativity	4
1.1 Terminology	4
1.2 Using this Guide	4
1.3 How to Contact Lionbridge Connector Support	5
1.3.1 Submitting a Support Ticket	6
1.3.2 Information to Include in a Support Ticket	6
1.3.3 Viewing and Updating Your Support Ticket in Zendesk	7
1.3.4 Signing Up for a Zendesk Account for Lionbridge Connectors	8
1.3.5 Getting a Zendesk Password if You Previously Emailed Lionbridge Connectors	9
2 System Requirements	.12
3 Installing the App	. 13
4 Configuring the App	. 14
4.1 Configuring Translation Providers	. 14
4.1.1 Changing Permissions for Configuring Translation Providers	17
4.2 Configuring Target Languages	. 18
4.2.1 Viewing Configured Target Languages	. 19
4.3 Configuring Source Languages	. 21
4.3.1 Viewing Configured Source Languages	24
4.4 Configuring SMTP Settings for Email Notifications	.25
4.5 Configuring Processing Settings	.26
4.5.1 Configuring the Workspace for Processing Settings	28
4.5.2 Creating Processing Profiles	30
4.5.3 Creating Processing Settings	. 31
4.5.4 How the Processing Settings Feature Affects the Relativity Environment \ldots	. 34
5 Lionbridge for Relativity Agents	36
6 Uninstalling the App	.38

1 Welcome to Lionbridge for Relativity

Welcome to Lionbridge for Relativity (App). This is Lionbridge's connector between Relativity and either Lionbridge Freeway or an FTP/SFTP server.

1.1 Terminology

Freeway	A Lionbridge translation portal and a translation provider.
Lionbridge	The publisher of the Freeway translation portal and a translation provider. Users connect to the Freeway translation portal to submit content to and retrieve content from the Lionbridge translation provider.
Lionbridge for Relativity (App)	The connector software that Lionbridge has developed and provides that plugs into your Relativity workspace to provide connectivity to the Lionbridge Freeway translation portal. In this document it is referred to as the App. This is the software you are installing and configuring as you work through this document.
Relativity	An e-discovery software solution.
Source language	The original language of the document. Content is translated <i>from</i> the source language.
Submission Set	One or more documents grouped together into a single translation job. All items in the job have the same source and target languages, translation-provider and related configuration, and metadata.
Target language	The translated language of the document. Content is translated <i>into</i> the target language.

1.2 Using this Guide

Purpose of this guide

This guide describes everything you need to know to install and configure Lionbridge for Relativity ("App"). It describes the delivery package contents, system requirements, installation instructions, and configuration procedures.

Recommendation: Review the user guide to fully understand the powerful features of the App.

Who should use this guide

This guide is intended for Relativity administrators and system integrators.

What you should already know

This document assumes that your company is already using Relativity and has a workspace set up. It assumes that you have a strong working knowledge of the Relativity workspace and features. It assumes that Lionbridge Freeway is already set up for your company.

How to find out more about Lionbridge for Relativity

- For information on using the App to send and receive documents for translation from Relativity, read the *Lionbridge for Relativity User Guide*.
- For information on retrieving documents for translation from the App on an FTP or SFTP server, and returning translated content to the App, read the *Lionbridge for Relativity Translator Guide for FTP/SFTP Users*.

Documentation conventions

This guide uses the following conventions:

Convention	Description
Bold	Highlights screen elements such as buttons, menu items, and fields.
Courier	Highlights input, file names, and paths.
Italics	Highlights terms to emphasize, variables, or document titles.

1.3 How to Contact Lionbridge Connector Support

Email @: <u>connectors@lionbridge.com</u>

Telephone: +1-416-363-0888

You can submit a support ticket either:

- by email
- from the Lionbridge Connector Zendesk page, using your web browser

1.3.1 Submitting a Support Ticket

- 1. Do one of the following:
 - Email <u>connectors@lionbridge.com</u>, and cc (carbon copy) anyone to include in the ticket correspondence.

Important: Include the information and attachments in your email that are listed in the sub-sections below.

- Create a ticket in Zendesk:
 - a. Open the Lionbridge Connector Zendesk page in your browser: <u>https://connectors.zendesk.com</u>.
 - b. Sign in to Zendesk.

Note: If you do not have sign-in credentials yet, then click either **Sign up** or **Get a password**, and follow the onscreen instructions.

Important: Include the information and attachments that are listed in the sub-sections below.

- c. Click Submit a request.
- d. In the **CCs** field, add anyone to include in the ticket correspondence.

Zendesk automatically creates a ticket and responds to everyone included in the cc field.

2. Everyone in the original cc receives updates unless they request to be removed from the ticket.

Important: Check your email spam folder (especially first-time Zendesk users) as sometimes email notifications from Zendesk are marked as spam.

When the issue is resolved, Lionbridge closes the ticket.

1.3.2 Information to Include in a Support Ticket

- client name
- CMS or content system name and version
- Connector or App version installed
- name of job for which the issue occurs
- date of job submission
- detailed description of the issue
- any error text–copy and paste, if applicable

Files to attach to the support ticket:

- CMS log files for the date the issue occurred
- Connector or App log files for the date the issue occurred
- screen capture of the issue

1.3.3 Viewing and Updating Your Support Ticket in Zendesk

Important: You must log into Zendesk to view your support tickets there.

- 1. Open the Lionbridge Connector Zendesk page in your browser: https://connectors.zendesk.com.
- 2. Enter your credentials, and click Sign in.

Sign in to Lionbridge Connectors	
Email	
Password	
□ Stay signed in	
Sign in	
Your credentials will be sent over a secure connection	
Cancel	
Forgot my password	
New to Lionbridge Connectors? Sign up	
Have you emailed us? Get a password If you've communicated with our support staff through email previously, you're already registered. You probably don't have a password yet, though.	

Note: If you do not have sign-in credentials yet, then click either **Sign up** or **Get a password**, and follow the onscreen instructions.

- 3. After signing in, click My activities to view the tickets you opened or where you are cc'd.
- 4. To update tickets, you can reply or attach files.

For more information, refer to "Submitting and tracking support requests" in Zendesk's *Help Center guide for end-users*, at: <u>https://support.zendesk.com/hc/en-us/articles/203664386-Help-Center-guide-for-agents-and-end-users</u>.

Important: Zendesk refers to a support ticket as a support request. These terms are interchangeable.

1.3.4 Signing Up for a Zendesk Account for Lionbridge Connectors

You can create a new Zendesk account for Lionbridge Connectors.

Note: If you have previously emailed Lionbridge Connectors Support at <u>connectors@lionbridge.com</u> to create a support ticket, you can get a password for your email account. For detailed instructions, see "How to Get a Password if You Have Previously Emailed Lionbridge Connectors."

To sign up for a Zendesk account:

- 1. Open the Lionbridge Connector Zendesk page in your browser: <u>https://connectors.zendesk.com</u>.
- 2. Click Sign up link.

	Sign in to Lionbridge Connectors
	Email
	Password
	Stay signed in
	Sign in
	Your credentials will be sent over a secure connection
	Cancel
	Forgot my password
New to Li	onbridge Connectors Sign up
Have you	emailed us? Get a password
If you've co you're aire	ommunicated with our support staff through email previously, eady registered. You probably don't have a password yet, though.

1 Welcome to Lionbridge for Relativity

The **Sign up** page opens.

<u>-</u>	Connectors
Please fill out this form, and welcome email shortly. You v complete this verification step visiting Clay Tab	we'll send you a will only need to once. Thanks for let!
/our full name *	
I'm not a robot	reCAPTCHA Pringoy Terms
	Prinacy - Herma
Sign up	

- 3. Enter your name and email address, and select the I'm not a robot check box.
- 4. Click Sign up.

The **Sign-up complete** page opens. You will receive a verification email shortly with a verification link that enables you to sign in. If you do not receive an email within a few minutes, please check your junk or spam folder.

5. Click the link in the verification email to create a password and sign into Zendesk.

1.3.5 Getting a Zendesk Password if You Previously Emailed Lionbridge Connectors

If you have previously emailed Lionbridge Connectors Support at <u>connectors@lionbridge.com</u> to create a support ticket, you can get a password for your email account.

1 Welcome to Lionbridge for Relativity

To get a password:

- 1. Open the Lionbridge Connector Zendesk page in your browser: <u>https://connectors.zendesk.com</u>.
- 2. Click the **Get a password** link.

	Sign in to Lionbridge Connectors
	Email
	Password
	Stay signed in
	Sign in
	Your credentials will be sent over a secure connection
	Cancel
	Forgot my password
New to L	ionbridge Connectors? Sign up
Have you	emailed us Get a password
If you've c you're aire	ommunicated with our support staff through email previously, eady registered. You probably don't have a password yet, though.

1 Welcome to Lionbridge for Relativity

The Please set me up with a new password page opens.

Please set me up with a new password	
To reset your password for	
https://connectors.zendesk.com, enter your	
email address and we'll send you an email with	1
instructions.	
Email	
Submit	
Can	cel

- 3. Enter the email address from which you emailed Lionbridge Connectors Support (<u>connectors@lionbridge.com</u>).
- 4. Click Submit.

Zendesk sends you an email with instructions for creating your password.

5. Follow the instructions in the email from Zendesk to create your password.

You can now sign in to Zendesk to create, view and update your support tickets.

2 System Requirements

Lionbridge for Relativity ("App") supports Relativity® versions 9.7, 10.0, 10.1, and RelativityOne.

A Relativity administrator can install the App to any workspace within a Relativity instance.

3 Installing the App

A Relativity administrator must install the App.

To install the App:

- 1. Select the workspace where you want to install the App.
- 2. Install the . RAP file to that workspace.
- 3. Optional. If you plan to configure processing settings, as described in "Configuring Processing Settings" on page 26, ensure that Relativity's Processing application is installed in the workspace where the App is installed. For detailed instructions, refer to the appropriate version of the Relativity documentation, here: https://help.relativity.com/9.7/Content/Relativity/Processing/Installing_and_configuring_processing.htm.

Note: Installing the App automatically creates the Lionbridge for Relativity agents. For descriptions of these agents, see "Lionbridge for Relativity Agents" on page 36.

4 Configuring the App

To configure the App, complete the following tasks:

- 1. You configure the translation providers to use. For details, see "Configuring Translation Providers" on page 14.
- 2. You configure target languages for each translation-provider configuration. For details, see "Configuring Target Languages" on page 18.
- 3. You configure source languages for each translation-provider configuration. For details, see "Configuring Source Languages" on page 21.
- 4. You configure the SMTP settings for the email address that sends out email notifications. For details, see "Configuring SMTP Settings for Email Notifications" on page 25.
- Optional. You can configure processing settings, which enables users to select processing settings when submitting content for translation, and then view all translated content in all document types access their translated documents in the **Documents** tab. For details, see "Configuring Processing Settings" on page 26.

4.1 Configuring Translation Providers

You configure a translation provider for the App by creating a *Lionbridge Admin Configuration*. You must create at least one configuration for each translation provider to which you will send files for translation.

Note: You can create multiple configurations for a translation provider. This is useful, for example, if you are delivering files for translation to multiple FTP or SFTP servers.

To configure a translation provider:

- 1. In Relativity, click the workspace where the App is installed.
- 2. In the Lionbridge Connector tab, click the Admin Configuration child tab.

3. In the top-left corner, click the **New Lionbridge Admin Configuration** button to open the **Lionbridge Admin Configuration Layout** dialog box.

Lionbridge Admin Configuration Layout 🔻 🖉	Save Save and New Save and Back Cancel
Admin Configuration	
Configuration Type: Select	
Name:	
Description:	

- 4. In the **Admin Configuration** section, in the **Configuration Type** dropdown list, select the type of translation provider to configure. This is one of:
 - " Freeway: The App delivers content for translation to Lionbridge Freeway.
 - SFTP: The App delivers content for translation to a secure FTP server.
 - **FTP: The App delivers content for translation to an FTP server.**

The Admin Configuration section updates based on your selection.

If Freeway is selected, the section is displayed as follows:

Lionbridge Admin Configuration Layout	• 0	Save Save an	d New Save a	and Back C	Cancel	
Admin Configuration						
Configuration Type:	Freeway •					
Name:						
Description:				N	New Password:	
		11				
Authentication Endpoint:				Confirm N	New Password:	
Service Endpoint:					Submit XML:	Yes
						No
				Expiration F	Period in Days:	

If SFTP or FTP is selected, the section is displayed as follows:

Lionbridge Admin Configuration Layout	•	Save Save and Ne	w Save and Back	Cancel	
Admin Configuration					
Configuration Type:	SFTP V				
Name:				User Name:	
Description:				New Password:	
			Confir	m New Password:	
Server Endpoint:					
Port:					
Destination Folder:					

5. Enter the following configuration information:

Field	Description
Name	The username of the web service credentials in Lionbridge Freeway, which the Lionbridge Freeway team provides to you. Tip: Freeway refers to the username as the <i>key</i> .
Description	A user-friendly description of this configuration.
Authentication Endpoint	The URL for Freeway Web service authentication. Note: Displayed only if Freeway is the selected configuration type, above.
Service Endpoint	The URL for Freeway Web service requests. Note: Displayed only if Freeway is the selected configuration type, above.
Server Endpoint	The endpoint URL of the SFTP or FTP server. Note: Displayed only if either SFTP or FTP is the selected configuration type, above.
Port	The port for connecting to the FTP or SFTP server. Note: Displayed only if either SFTP or FTP is the selected configuration type, above.

Field	Description
Destination Folder	The root folder of the SFTP or FTP server, where the App delivers content for translation and receives translated content. Note: Displayed only if either SFTP or FTP is the selected configuration type, above
User Name	User name applies to FTP and SFTP configurations Note: Displayed only if either SFTP or FTP is the selected configuration type, above.
New Password	The password of the web service credentials in Lionbridge Freeway, which the Lionbridge Freeway team provides to you. Tip: Freeway refers to the password as the <i>secret</i> .
Confirm New Password	Re-enter the password from the New Password field, described above.
Submit XML	Background: The App sends a file to Freeway for translation in its native form, for example, as a .docx, .pdf, or .txt file. Select this check box to send the file to Freeway as an .xml file if the native file format is not specified. Note: Displayed only if Freeway is the selected configuration type, above.
Expiration Period in Days	Specify the number of days, after which a submission set will be considered inactive, if no action occurs (it applies for Freeway configuration). Note: Displayed only if Freeway is the selected configuration type, above.

6. When you are done, click **Save**.

Tip: To edit an existing Lionbridge Admin Configuration, click the Edit link beside it.

For instructions on changing who can configure the App, see "Changing Permissions for Configuring Translation Providers" on page 17.

4.1.1 Changing Permissions for Configuring Translation Providers

You can change the permissions of who can configure the App by changing the permissions for the **Admin Configuration** tab.

To change the permissions for the Admin Configuration tab:

- In Relativity, create a group. Add the users to the group to whom you want to give access to the Admin Configurations tab for the App. For detailed instructions, refer to the Relativity documentation: <u>https://help.relativity.com/9.7/Content/Relativity/Groups.htm</u>.
- 2. Navigate to a workspace where the App is installed.
- 3. Add the group you created to the workspace.
 - a. Click Edit Permissions for your group.
 - b. Under Tab Visibility, navigate to the Admin Configuration tab and select it.
 - c. Click Save.
 - d. Close the Workspace Security View.

For detailed instructions, refer to the Relativity documentation: <u>https://help.relativity.com/9.7/Content/Relativity/Security_permissions/Setting_workspace_permissions.htm</u>.

4.2 Configuring Target Languages

You must configure one or more target languages. A *target language* is a language into which the documents are translated. Documents are translated from a *source* language into a *target* language.

A target language must be defined separately for each translation-provider configuration. For information on creating a translation-provider configuration, see "Configuring Translation Providers" on page 14.

To configure a target language:

1. In Relativity, click the workspace where the App is installed.

2. Click the Lionbridge Connector tab and then click the Target Language child tab.

Documents	Job Admin Worksp	ace Admin 👻 🚺 Lionbrid	Ige Connector Proc	essing v
Submission S	et Admin Configuratio	n Source Language	Target Language	Processing Settings About
Q New	v Lionbridge Target Langua	🕫 🕞 SFTP/FTP Targ	et Languages 🗸 🗸	
#	Name	Sync Configuration	Ocr Language	Supported Source Languages
	Filter		Filter	Filter
1 🗌 Edit	Spanish	FTP Test Configuration	Spanish	English
				Greek
2 🗌 Edit	Bulgarian	FTP Test Configuration		English
	The second second second second			the second second

3. Click New Lionbridge Target Language.

The Lionbridge Target Language Layout dialog box opens.

Lio	nbridge Target Language Layout 🔻 🖉	Save Save and New Save and Back Cancel
	Target Language	
	Name:	
	Sync Configuration: Select	

4. Enter the following information in the **Target Language** section:

Field	Description
Name	The name of this target language. This is the name displayed when users send out content for translation and select a target language.
Sync Configuration	Required. Select the translation-provider configuration for this target language. For details, see "Configuring Translation Providers" on page 14.

5. Click Save.

4.2.1 Viewing Configured Target Languages

You can view all configured target languages for the App. A *target language* is a language into which the documents are translated. Documents are translated from a *source* language into a *target* language. Each

target-language configuration is associated with a particular translation provider configuration (*sync configuration*).

To view configured target languages:

- 1. In Relativity, click the workspace where the App is installed.
- 2. Click the Lionbridge Connector tab and then click the Target Language child tab.

Documents	Job Admin	Workspace Admin V Lionbridge Connector Processing V
Submission S	et Admin Co	figuration Source Language Target Language Processing Settings
Q Nev	w Lionbridge Targ	Language SFTP/FTP Target Languages
		New View
#	Name	Syn SFTP/FTP Target Languages Supported Source
	Filter	All Lionbridge Target Languages Filter
1 🔲 Edit	Spanish	FTP Test Configuration Spanish English
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	**	Greek

The tab displays all target languages configured in the App.

- 3. In the dropdown list beside the **New Lionbridge Target Language** button, you can filter the list of target languages by the type of translation provider.
  - To view only target languages configured for delivery to translation providers using SFTP or FTP servers, select SFTP/FTP Target Languages.
  - **To view all configured target languages, select** All Lionbridge Target Languages.
- 4. You can view the following information about configured target languages:

Field	Description
Name	The name of this target language. This is the name displayed when users send out content for translation and select a target language.
Sync Configuration	Required. The translation-provider configuration for this target language. For a detailed description, see "Configuring Translation Providers" on page 14.
Supported Source Languages	A source language configured for this translation-provider configuration and supported for this target language.

5. You can perform the following actions in this tab:

- To edit a configured target language, click the corresponding Edit link.
- To add a configured target language, click New Lionbridge Target Language at the top of the page.

For detailed instructions, see "Configuring Target Languages" on page 18.

## 4.3 Configuring Source Languages

You must configure one or more source languages. A *source language* is the original language of documents, from which the documents are translated. Documents are translated from a *source* language into a *target* language.

A source language must be defined separately for each translation-provider configuration. For information on creating a translation-provider configuration, see "Configuring Translation Providers" on page 14.

#### To configure a source language:

- 1. In Relativity, click the workspace where the App is installed.
- 2. Click the **Lionbridge Connector** tab and then click the **Source Language** child tab.

Do	cuments	Job Admin Workspa	ace Admin 👻 🚺 Lionbridge	Connector Processing ~
Su	bmission S	et Admin Configuration	Source Language	Target Language Processing Settings About
ď	Nev	v Lionbridge Source Langua	ge 🕞 🖙 SFTP/FTP Sourc	e Languages 🗸
#	]	Name	Available Target Lang	Sync Configuration
		Filter	Filter	
1	Edit	Greek	Spanish	FTP Test Configuration
2	Edit	English	Bulgarian	FTP Test Configuration
			Spanish	
3	Edit	Russian	Italian	FTP Test Configuration
4	Edit	English	Swedish	RW_FTP_Test_v2.0
i bo	-	and the second second	- Louise to	An a star of the first of the first of the second sector of the first

3. Click New Lionbridge Source Language.

The Lionbridge Source Language Layout dialog box opens.

Lionbridge Source Language Layout 🔻	0	Save	Save and New	Save and Back	Cancel
Source Language					
Name:					
Sync Configuration:	Select •				
Available Target Languages:					

4. Enter the following information in the **Source Language** section:

Field	Description
Name	The name of this source language. This is the name displayed when users send out content for translation and select a source language.
Sync Configuration	Required. Select the translation-provider configuration for this source language. For details, see "Configuring Translation Providers" on page 14.

5. In Available Target Languages, you select one or more target languages into which files will be translated from this source language. The target languages that are available for selection are defined for the translation-provider configuration you selected in the Sync Configuration dropdown list, described above. For details, see "Viewing Configured Target Languages" on page 19.

a. Click the ellipsis button to open the **Select Items - Available Target Languages** dialog box in a new browser window.

🗗 Relativity - Google Chrome	- 🗆 X
C	
Select Items - Available Target Languages	
Available	Items
2 Selected Item(s)	↔ 🏹 🐻 🌐 Items 1 - 6 (of 6) K < >>
# 🔲 Name	Sync Configuration
1 🗹 Slovak	FTP TSD
2 🗹 Czech	FTP TSD
3 📃 Polish	FTP TSD
4 🔲 Bulgarian	FTP TSD
5 Moldovian	FTP TSD
6 Hungarian	FTP TSD *
	Viewing the first 6 of 6 items in sets of 25 v per page
Add Remove Selecter	d Items
0 Selected Item(s)	↔ 🏹 🔞 🌐 Items 0 - (of ) ⊮<>>>
# 🔲 Name	Sync Configuration
Set Cancel	Viewing the first 0 of 0 items in sets of 25 • per page

**Note:** The ellipsis button is available only after selecting a **Sync Configuration**, as described in the previous step.

b. In the top part of the dialog box, select the check boxes for the target languages to configure for this source language, and click **Add**.

Note: The Add button is available only when at least one target language is selected.

The selected target languages are now displayed at the bottom of the dialog box.

c. In the bottom part of the dialog box, click **Set** to save your change and close this dialog box.

The **Lionbridge Source Language Layout** dialog box reopens, displaying the source-language configuration.

Lionbridge Source Language Layout 🔻	0	Save Save and New Save and Back Cancel
Source Language		
Name:	English	
Sync Configuration:	FTP TSD V	
Available Target Languages:	Slovak Czech Clear	

6. At the top of the dialog box, click **Save** to save your changes.

## 4.3.1 Viewing Configured Source Languages

You can view all configured source languages. A *source language* is the original language of documents, from which the documents are translated. Documents are translated from a *source* language into a *target* language.

Each target-language configuration is associated with a particular translation provider configuration (*sync configuration*).

#### To view configured source languages:

- 1. In Relativity, click the workspace where the App is installed.
- 2. Click the **Lionbridge Connector** tab and then click the **Source Language** child tab.

Documents	Job Admin	Workspace Admin 🗸 🗸	Lionbridge Connector	Processing 🗸	
Submission Se	et Admin C	onfiguration Source La	anguage Target Langua	age Processing Settings	Abo
Q New	/ Lionbridge Sou	irce Language 🛛 🖻 SF1	P/FTP Source Languages		3
			( New View	20	- 6
#	Name	Avai SFTP/F	TP Source Languages		2
	Filter	Filter	bridge Source Languages		-5
1 📃 Edit	Greek	Spanish	FTP Test Co	nfiguration	$\geq$
2 🔲 Edit	English	Bulgarian	FTP Test Co	ofiguration	<u>ک</u> ر

The tab displays all source languages configured in the App.

- 3. In the dropdown list beside the **New Lionbridge Source Language** button, you can filter the list of source languages by the type of translation provider.
  - To view only source languages configured for delivery to translation providers using SFTP or FTP servers, select SFTP/FTP Source Languages.
  - **To view all configured source languages, select** All Lionbridge Source Languages.
- 4. You can view the following information about configured source languages:

Field	Description
Name	The name of this source language. This is the name displayed when users send out content for translation and select a source language.
Available Target Languages	A target language configured for this translation-provider configuration and configured for this source language.
Sync Configuration	Required. The translation-provider configuration for this source language. For a detailed description, see "Configuring Translation Providers" on page 14.

- 5. You can perform the following actions in this tab:
  - To edit a configured source language, click the corresponding Edit link.
  - To add a configured source language, click New Lionbridge Target Language at the top of the page.

For detailed instructions, see "Configuring Source Languages" on page 21.

## 4.4 Configuring SMTP Settings for Email Notifications

You can configure SMTP settings for the email address that will send out notifications from the App about translation-status events. The App sends out notifications to the email addresses specified in a submission set when translation-status events occur. For a list and description of these events, refer to the *Lionbridge for Relativity User Guide*.

You configure SMTP settings in Relativity's **Instance Settings** tab, which is accessible to Relativity system administrators.

User Status	Workspaces	User and Group Management 👒	Oueue Management 👒	Server & Agent Management 👒	Applications & Scripts	<ul> <li>Admin Workspace</li> </ul>	e Configuration 🖂	Instance Details	Data Grid 🐱	Platform Status	Instance Settings
Q	ew Instance Setting	5 All Instance Settings	v								
								++ 🍸	16 🖽   🚺	-5/5 25 •	per page III C I
	Name	Ÿ	Value		1	Description	Section	Machine Nan	NO .		
	smtp		Filter			Filter	Filter	Filter			
1 🗉 Edit	SMTPPasso	word				Defines the password for he username associated with the credentials of he SMTP server.	kCura.Notification				
2 🔲 Edit	SMTPPort					dentifies the port used or SMTP transactions. You can change the Sefault to another port based on the setup of the SMTP server in your environment. It must be an integer value.	kCura Notification				
3 🗐 Edit	SMTP Serve	r .				dentifies the SMTP server used to send notifications. Update the default value with a setting appropriate for your environment.	kCura.Notification				
4 🔲 Edit	SMTPSSLis	Required				Determines if Relativity uses Secure Sockets ayer (SSL) to encrypt the connection to the SMTP server, it is ecommended that this value be True.	kCura Notification				
5 🔲 Edit	SMTPUser	(ame				Defines the username associated with the predentials of the SMTP server. It's validated applies the SMTP suthentication. The SMTPUserName must be associated with the same account as defined in EmailFrom.	kCura Notification				

You must configure the following settings:

- Authentication Email From
- SMTP Password
- SMTP Port
- SMTP Server
- SMTP User Name

## 4.5 Configuring Processing Settings

Optional. You can create one or more sets of *processing settings*. This enables users to select a set of processing settings when submitting content for translation. Using processing settings has the following advantages:

- Users can view all translations, in supported document types, within the translation viewer after the App returns them to Relativity. Otherwise, you can view only . PDF and . TXT files.
- Users can access their translated documents in the **Documents** tab. Otherwise users can access only source documents in this location.

Relativity supports specific file types for this feature. For a detailed list of supported file types, refer to the appropriate version of the Relativity documentation, at:

https://help.relativity.com/9.7/Content/Relativity/Processing/Supported_file_types_for_processing.htm#Supported_file_types.

Each processing setting includes the following information:

- A *processing profile*, which is a collection of the following settings:
  - default OCR (Optical Character Recognition) languages
  - auto-publishing setting
  - folder structure of translated files

**Note:** Before configuring processing settings, create one or more processing profiles. For detailed instructions, see "Creating Processing Profiles" on page 30.

- A *destination folder*, which is the folder in the Relativity workspace where the translated documents will be processed.
- The time zone of the processing engine, which determines how Relativity converts all metadata date/time fields of the translated files.

Configuring process settings has the following advantages:

- It enable users to view translations of all document types in the **Documents** tab. Otherwise, only . PDF and . TXT files are viewable in the **Documents** tab.
- It enable users to access translated documents in the **Documents** tab. Otherwise, only source documents are accessible in the **Documents** tab.

Configuring this feature requires the following main steps:

- Ensuring that Relativity's Processing application is installed in the workspace where the App is installed. For detailed instructions, refer to the appropriate version of the Relativity documentation, here: <u>https://help.relativity.com/9.7/Content/Relativity/Processing/Installing_and_configuring_processing.htm.</u>
- 2. "Configuring the Workspace for Processing Settings" on page 28.
- 3. "Creating Processing Profiles" on page 30.
- 4. "Creating Processing Settings" on page 31.

For a detailed description of how this feature works, see "How the Processing Settings Feature Affects the Relativity Environment" on page 34.

## 4.5.1 Configuring the Workspace for Processing Settings

Optional. If you plan to configure processing settings, as described in "Configuring Processing Settings" on page 26, you must configure the workspace, as described in this section. You must map the File Name field to the Document object. This step is required in order to enable the Processing functionality of the App.

For more information about mapping fields, see

https://help.relativity.com/9.7/Content/Relativity/Processing/Mapping_processing_fields.htm#Mapping_fields.

## To map the File Name field to the Document object:

- 1. In Relativity, click the workspace where the App is installed.
- 2. Click the **Workspace Admin** tab and then click the **Fields** sub-tab.

Documents	Job Admin	Workspace Admin	Lionbridge	Connector 🖂	Processin	g ~ `
Workspace De	etails Objec	t Type Fields	Choices C	hoices List	Layouts	Views
Q Nev	r Field 🕞 🥖	All Non-System Docum	ent Fields 🔍 👻			
¥ 🔲	Name	Field Typ	)e	Include in	Text Index	Is Rel
	Filter	(All)	•	(All)		(AIT
1 🔲 Edit	Artifact ID	Whole No	umber	No		No
2 Edit	Artifact IP	Whole N	unber	-ao mari	A second	1

3. Click the **New Field** button, in the top-left corner to open a dialog box for defining the new field.

Save Save and	New Save and Back Cancel
Object	
Object Type: Document	
Field Information	
Name: File Name	Available In Viewer: No *
Source: Select	Available In Field Tree: No *
Field Type: Fixed-Length Text	Field Tree View: 🔹 🖉 🕀
Length: 255	Allow HTML: No V
Required: No 🔻	Formatting: None •
Include in Text Index: No 🔻	Open to Associations: No 🔻
Unicode: Yes •	Overlay Behavior: Merge Values *
Identifier: No *	Enable Data Grid: No 🔻
Propagation	- 444
and a second the second s	and a second

- 4. In the dialog box that opens:
  - In the Object Type dropdown list, select Document.
  - In the Name field, enter File Name.
  - In the Field Type dropdown list, select Fixed-Length Text. This automatically populates the Length field with 255.
- 5. Click the ellipsis button _____ next to the **Source** field to open the **Select an Item** dialog box in a new browser window.

s	Select an Item				
$\left( \right)$	Set Cancel				
	Field Catalog	~			
ſ					
ľ			+	• 7	1 - 1 / 1   50 ▼ per page K < > ≥
	Source Field Name	Field Type	Description		Workspace Field Mapping(s)
	File Name	(All) T	Filter		Filter
<	File Name	Fixed-Length Text (255)	The original name of the file.		File Name

a. In the field under Source Field Name, type File Name, and press Enter.

This filters the list so that only File Name is displayed.

- b. Select the radio button beside File Name.
- c. Click Set.

The dialog box for defining the new field re-opens, displaying the File Name field in the **Source** field.

Documents	Job Admin	Work	space Admin	Lionbr	idge Connector	<ul> <li>Proces</li> </ul>	ssing 🗸				
Workspace De	tails Object	Туре	Fields	Choices	Choices List	Layouts	Views	Tabs	History	User Status	and the second sec
							Save	Save and N	lew Save	e and Back Cancel	
Object											
	Object Typ	pe: D	ocument		•						<
											-
Field Inform	nation										- 4
	Nar	ne: Fi	le Name							Available In V	iewer
	Sour	ce: Fi	le Name			lear				Available In Field	Tre
	Field Ty	pe: F	ixed-Length T	ext 🔻						Field Tree	View:
	Leng	th: 25	5							Allow	HTML:
	Require	ed: N						المعجا		Forma	atti

6. At the top of the dialog box, click **Save**.

The File Name field is now mapped to the Document object.

Next, you create processing profiles, as described in "Creating Processing Profiles" on page 30.

## 4.5.2 Creating Processing Profiles

Optional. If you plan to configure processing settings, as described in "Configuring Processing Settings" on page 26, you must create processing profiles.

For detailed instructions on creating processing profiles, refer to the appropriate version of the Relativity documentation at: <a href="https://help.relativity.com/9.7/Content/Relativity/Processing/Processing_profiles.htm">https://help.relativity.com/9.7/Content/Relativity/Processing/Processing_profiles.htm</a>

When creating a processing profile for use with the Lionbridge App, specify the following values for the settings in the table below:

Setting	Description	Recommended Value
Default OCR languages	The language for identifying files using OCR (Optical Character Recognition), where text extraction is not possible, such as for image files containing text. This selection determines the default language on the processing data sources that you create and then associate with a processing set.	English
Auto- publish set	Enables the processing engine to automatically start publish after the discovery is complete, with or without errors. The default value is $No$ .	Yes
Do you want to use source folder structure	Maintains the folder structure of the source of the files you process when bringing these files into Relativity.	No

Next, you create processing settings, as described in "Creating Processing Settings" on page 31.

## 4.5.3 Creating Processing Settings

You create processing settings so that they are available for selection when users submit content for translation. Each set of processing settings includes:

- a *processing profile*, which you created in "Creating Processing Profiles" on page 30
- a destination folder, which is the folder in the Relativity workspace where the translated documents will be processed
- the time zone of the processing engine, which determines how Relativity converts all metadata date/time fields of the translated files

**Tip:** You can create a processing set for each target language, and this will help identify target files of a particular language in Control Number column. However, the drawback of this approach is at you can only submit content for translation in only one target language at a time.

## To create a set of processing settings:

1. In Relativity, click the workspace where the App is installed.

2. Click the **Lionbridge Connector** tab and then click the **Processing Settings** child tab.

Docu	ments	Job Admin Workspace Admin 🗸 Lionbridge Connector Processing 🗸
Subr	nission Se	Admin Configuration Source Language Target Language Processing Settings About
Q	New	Jonbridge Processing Settings 🛛 🛱 All Lionbridge Processing Settings 🗸 🗸
		↔ 🏹 🔞 🌐   1 -2/2   50 🔻 per page K<>) >   =
# 🔲		lame
		Filter
1 🔲	Edit	Ionbridge Processing Settings
2	Edit	Processing Settings Demo

3. Click New Lionbridge Processing Settings.

The Lionbridge Processing Settings Layout dialog box opens.

Lionbridge Processing Settings Layout V	Save Save and New Save and Back Cancel						
Processing Settings							
Name:	Processing Source Location Path:						
Processing Profile:	elect.   Note: Please, create a Processing Source Location choice for this FileShare Location and link it to the Workspace's Resource Pool.						
Destination Folder:	elect.						
Time Zone:	elect						

4. Enter the following information in the dialog box:

Field	Description
Name	The name of this set of App processing settings. This is the name displayed when users send out content for translation and select a set of processing settings.
Processing Profile	<ul> <li>Select a previously created processing profile, which includes:</li> <li>default OCR (Optical Character Recognition) languages</li> <li>auto-publishing setting</li> <li>folder structure of translated files</li> <li>For instructions on creating a processing profile, see "Creating Processing Profiles" on page 30.</li> </ul>
Destination Folder	Select a folder in the Relativity workspace where the translated documents will be processed.

Field	Description
Time Zone	Select a time zone for the processing engine. The time zone of the processing engine, which determines how Relativity converts all metadata date/time fields of the translated files. For more information refer to "How does processing handle time zones?" in the Relativity documentation at: <u>https://help.relativity.com/9.7/Content/Relativity/Processing/Processing_FAQs.htm</u> .

5. At the top of the dialog box, click **Save** to save your changes.

The **Lionbridge Processing Settings Layout** dialog box reopens, displaying the path you specified for the destination folder in the **Processing Source Location Path** text box. The App automatically creates this location on the File Share Server.

Lionbridge Processing Settings Layou	it 🔻	Edit Delete Back	Record 1 of 1 K < > >1
Processing Settings			
Name:	123	Processing Source Location Ntsdrelavm11020\FileShare\LionbridgeConnector\Pro	cessing
Processing Profile:	Default	Note: Please, create a Processing Source Location choice for this FileShare Location an the Workspace's Resource Pool.	d link it to
Destination Folder:	Lionbridge Translations		
Time Zone:	(UTC+05:45) Kathmandu		

- 6. Copy the value in the Processing Source Location Path text box to the clipboard.
- 7. Click the Relativity home button in the top-left corner.
- 8. Click the Admin Workspace Configuration tab and then click the Choices child tab.

Workspaces User and Group Management v Server & Agent Management v	Admin Workspace Configuration	
Views Choices Choices List Tabs License Fields Layouts	Object Type	
Choice Editor		See All Choices
Select Fields	Manage Choices (1) 👩	
Object Type: Workspace	Filter $\leftarrow$ $\triangleq$ $\bullet$ Add Choice $\odot$ Add Many Choices	
Field Name: Processing Source Location	Ultsdrelavm11020/FileShare\LionbridgeConn) Options Apply Cancel	
	Click to add a choice	
		A
		v
		×
	Save Cancel	

- 9. In the Object Type dropdown list, select Workspace.
- 10. In the Field Name dropdown list, select Processing Source Location.
- 11. Click Add Choice.
- 12. Paste the path you copied in step 6, above, from the clipboard to the field that is displayed, and then click **Apply**.
- 13. Click Save to save your changes.
- 14. Click the Server & Agent Management tab and then click the Resource Pools child tab.

Workspaces User and Group Management 🗸	Server & Agent Management	Admin Workspace Configuration 🗸	
Agents Resource Pools Servers			
		Edit Back View Audit	
Utsdrelaym11020/dtSearch)			3
0 Selected Item(s)			Select Page Size: 50 V
4			•
Worker Manager Server Change Remove			↔ 🖾 🖽
Name	Serve	er Name	Version
TSDRELAVM11020	tsdre	lavm11020	4.7.230.2
4			•
Processing Source Locations Add Remove	2		↔ 🚺 🏹 76 ⊞   Items 1 - 1 (of 1) K < > >
Name Name			
(All)			
\\tsdrelavm11020\FileShare\LionbridgeConnector	\Processing		
0 Selected Item(s)			Select Page Size: 50 🔻
4			•

- 15. Scroll down to the **Processing Source Locations** section.
- 16. Click **Add**.
- 17. The Select Processing Source Locations dialog box opens.
- 18. Select the check box for the path, and click **OK**.

# 4.5.4 How the Processing Settings Feature Affects the Relativity Environment

After a user submits a submission set for translation, and the App schedules it for processing:

- 1. The App automatically creates the following Relativity objects:
  - Lionbridge Connector custodian

**Note:** In Relativity 10.x, this is called an *entity*.

- A processing set, named after the submission set's artifact ID.
- A *data source* with OCR languages based the selected target languages of the submission set (if the target languages have OCR equivalents).
- 2. The Lionbridge Processing Agent automatically *inventories*, *discovers*, and *published* the processing set.
- 3. After the *processing set* is successfully *published*, the submission set's status is updated and the translated documents are available in the Documents tab. They are identifiable as related documents because the **Lionbridge Source** column lists the source document.

# 5 Lionbridge for Relativity Agents

The App includes nine agents, which are automatically created the first time that the App is installed on an active Agent Server.

There must be only one instance of each agent on a Relativity instance, and all agents must be enabled. The run cycle of each agent is measured in seconds.

The App includes the following agents:

Agent	Description	Recommended Run Interval (Seconds)
Lionbridge Freeway Objects Sync Agent	This agent synchronizes Lionbridge and Freeway platform objects, such as source languages, target languages, and translation type (which specifies a Freeway analysis code for a submission set).	3600
Lionbridge Set Scheduler Agent	This agent queues scheduled submission sets for submission to the FTP or SFTP server or to Lionbridge Freeway. queues created Scheduled Submission Sets for submission.	3600
Lionbridge Project Submit Agent	This agent submits queued submission sets to Lionbridge Freeway for translation. submits queued Submission Sets to Freeway platform for translation.	120
Lionbridge Status Update Agent	This agent updates the status of submitted submission sets based on the statuses returned by the Freeway platform.	120
Lionbridge Consistency Check Agent	This agent checks the consistency of submission sets.	120
Lionbridge Freeway File Delivery Agent	This agent checks for translated submission sets from Lionbridge Freeway and delivers them to Relativity. If processing settings were configured and a user selected a set of processing settings while submitting content for translation, then this agent creates a processing set in Relativity after delivering all translations from Lionbridge Freeway.	3600

Agent	Description	Recommended Run Interval (Seconds)
Lionbridge FTP Translation Download Agent	This agent checks for translated documents on the FTP/SFTP server and downloads them to Relativity. If processing settings wre configured and a user selected a set of processing settings while submitting content for translation, then this agent creates a processing set in Relativity after delivering all translations from the FTP or SFTP server.	3600
Lionbridge FTP Folder Deletion Queue Agent	This agent checks for deleted submission sets and deletes their related folders on the FTP or SFTP server.	3600
Lionbridge Processing Agent	This agent checks for scheduled processing sets of delivered submission sets, and it triggers the Inventory, Discover, or Publish process.	3600

## 6 Uninstalling the App

To uninstall the App, you uninstall the Lionbridge for Relativity application from the workspace where it is installed.

#### To uninstall the App:

- 1. Log into Relativity as a system administrator.
- 2. In Relativity, click the workspace where the App is installed.
- 3. In the Application Admin tab, click the Relativity Applications sub-tab.
- 4. After a list with applications loads, click the Lionbridge Connector application.
- 5. On the right side of the loaded layout, click the **Unlock Application** button.
- 6. On the right side of the loaded layout, click the **Uninstall Application** button.
- 7. On the right side of the loaded layout, click the **Validate Components to Uninstall** button.
- 8. When prompted, confirm the uninstallation process.